
 
 
 

Highways Committee 
 
 
Date Friday 10 December 2021 

Time 9.30 am 

Venue Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Substitute Members   

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 8 November 2021  (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Declarations of Interest, if any   

5. Alleged Public Footpath from West View to St Mary's Church 
Yard, Barnard Castle (Definitive Map Modification Order 
Application) - Report of the Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods 
and Climate Change  (Pages 7 - 160) 

6. Definitive Map Modification Orders Statement of Priorities - 
Report of the Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods and Climate 
Change  (Pages 161 - 166) 

7. Such other business, as in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 
 

Helen Lynch 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
2 December 2021 
 



 
To: The Members of the Highways Committee 

 
 Councillor R Ormerod (Chair) 

Councillor D Boyes (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors A Bell, T Duffy, C Kay, K Earley, J Higgins, 
J Howey, G Hutchinson, R Manchester, B Moist, D Oliver, 
I Roberts, M-Idwal Roberts, K Robson, A Simpson, A Sterling, 
F Tinsley, M Wilson and D Wood 

 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Kirsty Charlton Tel: 03000 269 705 

 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 
At a Meeting of Highways Committee held in Council Chamber, County Hall, 
Durham on Monday 8 November 2021 at 9.30 am 
 
 
Present: 
 

Councillor R Ormerod (Chair) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors D Boyes (Vice-Chair), A Bell, J Howey, R Manchester, B Moist, 
D Oliver, I Roberts, M-Idwal Roberts, K Robson, M Wilson and D Wood 
 
 

1 Apologies  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Duffy, Earley, Kay, Higgins, 
Hutchinson, Simpson, Sterling and Tinsley. 
 

2 Substitute Members  
 
There were no substitute Members in attendance. 
 

3 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the Meeting held on 7 October 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair. 
 

4 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5 Proposal to add an old road 'Nanny Poes Lane 'in Middlestone, to 
 the Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way as a 
 Public Bridleway  
 
The Committee considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of 
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and the Corporate Director of Resources, 
which provided evidence gathered in support of an application to modify the 
Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a Public Bridleway 
over an enclosed former road ‘Nanny Poes Lane’ (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
The Definitive Map Officer confirmed that the application was for a public right of 
way with bridleway status which should have been placed on the map when it had 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



been removed from the list of streets.  It was estimated to have been removed in 
the 1960’s although it could have been earlier as there was no definitive 
information.  Locals had used it as a bridleway and the Committee were being 
asked to agree to the rectification of the records.  There had been no objections to 
the proposal and the definitive map should be updated accordingly. 
 
The Planning and Development Solicitor advised that this type of application was 
based on the documentary evidence provided, rather than historic use. 
 
Councillor Boyes considered the application was straightforward however he 
queried the cost implications associated should the Highways Authority become 
responsible for maintenance.  The Access and Rights of Way Team Leader advised 
that 270 applications had been submitted with documentary evidence and all would 
be publicly maintainable. 
 
The Definitive Map Officer added that these routes were in Middlestone, which got 
its name due to it having been a quarry area and these routes in particular were the 
easiest to maintain.  The main cost would be for signage. 
 
Councillor Boyes suggested that it may be useful to have costs in the report in 
future, although it was acknowledged that this would not be a consideration for 
decision making. 
 
Councillor Boyes moved the recommendation for approval seconded by Councillor 
Manchester. 
 
Resolved 
That the Definitive Map Modification Order for the addition to the Definitive Map & 
Statement of a Public Bridleway between points A & B on the plan, known as 
Nanny Poes Lane, be agreed. 
 

6 Definitive Map Modification Application to record the former road 
 Nanny Pops Lonnen in Spennymoor as Public Bridleway  
 
The Committee considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of 
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and the Corporate Director of Resources, 
which provided evidence gathered in support of an application to modify the 
Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a Public Bridleway 
over a way called ‘Nanny Pops Lonnen’ (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
The Definitive Map Officer advised that the route was believed to have been 
removed from the list of streets some time in the 1970’s and should have been 
added to the Definitive Map.   
 
Councillor Howey queried whether the route went across the A688 and whether 
there was any danger if increasing the use.  The Definitive Map Officer confirmed 

Page 4



that it did cross that highway and precedent had been set with Bridleway no. 58 to 
the east, which also crossed the A688.  Spennymoor Town Council had responded 
to query the signage which would be installed and this was a well trod path which 
was already used locally. 
 
Councillor Wilson moved the recommendation for approval, seconded by Councillor 
Howey. 
 
Resolved 
That the Definitive Map Modification Order for the addition to the Definitive Map & 
Statement of a Bridleway between points A & B on the map, known as Nanny Pops 
Lonnen, be agreed. 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Highways Committee 

10 December 2021 

Alleged Public Footpath from West View 

to St Mary’s Church Yard, Barnard 

Castle.   

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

Definitive Map Modification Order 

Application 

 

Report of Alan Patrickson, Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods 
and Climate Change and Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services. 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Barnard Castle West, County Durham 

Purpose of the Report 

1 In this report the Highways Committee is asked to consider all the 
relevant evidence gathered in support of an application to modify the 
Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way by adding a 
public footpath from a ginnel that connects the High Street with West 
View through a plot of land, that was once the site of the National Girls 
School, to a boundary wall separating it from St Marys Church yard in 
Barnard Castle (Document A, point A-B). 

 

Executive summary 

2 The original application route shown in (Document B, point A to C) 
was to add a footpath from the ginnel that connects West View and the 
High Street through a plot of land that was formerly the Old National 
Girls’ School, now privately owned, and ecclesiastical land (church 
yard) that belongs to St Mary’s Church, to join an adopted highway 
running west to east through the church yard. As a Public Right of Way 
cannot arise by presumed dedication over land that is ecclesiastical in 
nature the route required shortening to that shown in (Document A). 
This has resulted in a cul-de-sac that terminates at aa hole in the 
boundary wall between the two plots of land.  

3 The amended application route of the alleged public footpath, shown in 
Document A, is approximately 17 metres in length and runs from an old 
stone doorway, from the ginnel (Grey Lane North) that connects the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



High Street with West View (Document C, photograph A & A.1), 
through a plot of privately owned land that was once the site of the 
National Girls’ School (Document C, photograph B & B.1), to a hole in 
the boundary wall of St Mary’s Church in Barnard Castle (Document C, 
photograph C).  

4 Consultations on the proposed addition were carried out in 2008 with 
Local Councillors, landowners/occupiers and user groups/organisations. 
However, due to the length of time that had elapsed, between receiving 
the application in 2005 and it being reviewed by the Highways 
Committee, a second consultation was required (Document D). The 
consultations resulted in one letter supporting the application route 
(Document E).  

5 The evidence submitted consists of user evidence forms and witness 
statements (Document F). A total of 23 individuals submitted user 
evidence. Out of the 23 users that submitted user evidence forms 
and/or statements 11 have the required 20 years or more use. After 
careful consideration and a thorough investigation of the evidence it 
was determined that only 2, out of the 11 with the required 20 or more 
years use (Document G), met the legal tests and could be considered 
as the ‘public at large’ (Legal Framework, paragraphs18 to 24). 
Therefore, due to the limited number of users that can be classed as the 
‘public at large’ we as a surveying authority recommend that the 
Definitive Map and Statement should not be modified by way of adding 
the alleged footpath, and that the application be refused. 

Recommendation(s) 

6 It is recommended that the Committee accept the officer’s 
recommendation to refuse the application and therefore not make a 
Definitive Map Modification Order to amend the Definitive Map and 
Statement by way of adding c.17 metres of public footpath under 
section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 and 53(3)(b) & (3)(c)(i) of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 

Background 

Application 

7 The alleged path was brought to the attention of Durham County 
Council in August 2003 by two separate individuals, both prospective 
purchasers of the land, querying the status of the alleged path. 
Following this Mr and Mrs Watson, one of the interested parties and 
prospective purchasers, collated and submitted user evidence forms to 
Durham County Council to support a Definitive Map Modification Order 
Application. User evidence witness interviews and statements were also 
carried out and collected by members of the Access & Rights of Way 
Team. Copies of the user evidence forms and witness statements can 
been found in (Document F).  

Page 8



8 The alleged path crosses one parcel of land under private ownership.  
The site of the former Old National Girls’ School is owned by Mr 
Mockford who owns a nearby property and purchased the land in March 
2006 from the Diocesan Board of Finance.  

9 Between 2003 to 2008 a combination of user evidence forms and 
witness statements were submitted for an alleged footpath leading from 
Gray Lane North, a ginnel that connects West View and the High Street, 
through two plots of land, to an adopted pathway that runs West to east 
through the Church Yard. The application was upgraded to a formal 
application in February of 2005. The application was submitted by Mrs 
Watson for a Definitive Map Modification Order, under Section 53 of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to record the aforementioned 
footpath on the Definitive Map and Statement. The original application 
route is shown in Document B, point A to C. The amended route, 
when considering that a public footpath cannot arise by presumed 
dedication over ecclesiastical land, is shown in Document A, point A - 
B. The application was never formally amended. It’s believed that a 
verbally agreement to amend the route was reached after a discussion 
was had with the applicant regarding the ecclesiastical nature of the 
churchyard. 

10 The evidence submitted consists of a combination of 16 user evidence 
forms with 10 witness statements.  

11 All the evidence forms were submitted to a former colleague. Witness 
interviews and statements were also carried out by a former colleague. 
A draft Highways Committee report was compiled but for reasons 
unknown the application was never reviewed or brought before this 
Committee.  

12 The formal application that was submitted in 2005 was highlighted as 
never having been considered by the Highways Committee shortly after 
the appointment of two Definitive Map Officers in 2019. It was 
determined, due to the amount of time that had elapsed, since the 
submission in 2005, that this application needed to be progressed.  

Route 

13 The original route of the alleged path can be broken into two sections. 
The first section travels in a generally northerly direction, leaving Gray 
Lane North, a historic ginnel, through a stone doorway that leads into 
the site of the former National Girls School. It crosses this rectangular 
parcel of scrub land, which is surrounded by walls, before exiting 
through a gap in the wall, created by the then Teesdale District Council 
in 1980 (Document H), into St Mary’s Churchyard. The path is defined 
with a surface of fine stone and is c.17 metres in length and less than 1 
metre wide (Document A, point A - B & Document C, photographs B 
& B.1). The second section follows the edge of the churchyard abutting 
the rear wall of Brick House Yard to join the adopted footpath which 
traverses the Churchyard. It is on a slight incline and is now 
predominately earth and grass and is c. 20 metres in length and is of 

Page 9



indeterminable width (Document B, point B – C & Document C, 
photographs C). 

14 Due to the ecclesiastical nature of St Marys Churchyard and it being 
subject to ecclesiastical law, whereby a public footpath cannot arise 
through presumed dedication, the application route has been amended 
to that shown in Document A, point A-B. 

 

Consultation and Objections 

15 Consultations on the amended application were carried out in 2008 with 
Local Councillors, landowners/occupiers and user groups/organisations. 
However, due to the length of time that had elapsed between receiving 
the application in 2005 and it now being reconsidered by the Highways 
Committee a second consultation was required (Document D). The 
consultations resulted in one letter supporting the application route 
(Document E).  

16 In March 2005 the Council contacted the Diocesan Board of Finance 
about the application, giving them the opportunity to submit any 
evidence and also to propose resolving the issue by agreement.  
However, the Board stated that it did not accept the public right of way 
existed and was not agreeable to a creation agreement (Document I).  
The churchyard section of path is subject to specific ecclesiastical law 
which is discussed later in the report (Legal Framework, paragraphs 18 
to 24). 

17 The only considerations that the Council can take into account are 
those that relate to whether the alleged footpath, currently not 
shown on the Definitive Map, meet the legal tests a set out under 
section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 and 53(3)(b) & (3)(c)(i) of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.   

 

 

 

Legal Framework 

18 Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981, the County Council as Surveying Authority has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under review and is required to make a 
Modification Order under Section 53(3)(c)(i) on the discovery by the 
authority of evidence which, when considered with all other relevant 
evidence available to them, shows that a right of way subsists or is 
reasonably alleged to subsist.  

Page 10



19 The Highways Act 1980, Section 31 states that, in the absence of 
contrary intention, a way may be ‘deemed to have been dedicated as a 
highway’ where ‘it has been actually enjoyed by the public as of right 
and without interruption for a full period of twenty years’, that period to 
be calculated retrospectively from the date when the right of public use 
was brought into question.  As of right means without force, without 
secrecy and without permission.  The use must be sufficient for a 
landowner to understand that rights are being asserted.  

20 Churchyard land is consecrated and designated for the purposes of a 
burial ground forever.  On consecration the land will have changed legal 
character and ceased to be land over which a right of way could arise. 
Therefore, it is not possible for public footpath rights to be acquired over 
such land by means of deemed dedication. 

21 It is unusual for a cul-de-sac to be a public right of way, however, there 
are circumstances where this is possible. The route must serve the 
purpose of reaching a place of public resort in addition to meeting the 
required legal tests. All the circumstances of a case need to be 
considered. 

22 The Human Rights Act is of relevance. Whilst article 1 to the first 
protocol (peaceful enjoyment of property) and article 8 (right to respect 
for family, private life and home) are engaged, it is important to note that 
these rights are qualified, not absolute, which means that they can be 
interfered with in so far as such interference is in accordance with 
domestic law and is necessary in a democratic society for the protection 
of the rights and freedoms of others.  It is considered that any 
interference occasioned by the making of a Modification Order is both in 
accordance with domestic law (the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981) 
and is in the public interest as it is necessary in a democratic society for 
the protection of the rights and freedoms of others, namely the public 
who wish to use the way. 

23 The Council has a duty arising from Section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010 to have due regard to the need to achieve the following objectives: 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any 
other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share  
it; 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

It is not considered that the assessment of this application raises 
any specific Public Sector Equality duty matters.  

24 Should Members resolve that a Modification Order should not be made 
in accordance with the above legislation, this is not necessarily the end 

Page 11



of the legal process. Should a Modification Order not be made, the 
applicant and the landowner/s must be informed. The applicant will 
have an opportunity to make an appeal against the refusal to make the 
Modification Order to the Secretary of State, who will either direct the 
Council to make an Order or uphold the decision to refuse the 
application. 

 

Relevant Evidence 
 
25 Document F – User Evidence 
26 Document H – Teesdale District Council Reclamation Scheme –            

    West View, Barnard Castle 
 
Assessment of the evidence 
 
27 The part of the route subject of the original application which crossed St 

Mary’s Church yard is not capable of being a public right of way and the 
application was amended to delete this part of the claimed route.  
Accordingly, only that part of the route from A-B is now under 
consideration. 

 
28 The evidence suggests the earliest date this route was brought into 

question was in 2003 when the status of the path was queried by Mr 
Watson and by a prospective purchaser of the land and subsequently 
an application was submitted.  These were acts considered sufficient to 
bring the route into question and therefore the relevant twenty-year 
period should be calculated retrospectively from 2003 i.e. from 1983-
2003. 

 
29 The requirement to submit 20 or more user evidence forms is not a 

legislative requirement. However, the RoW team regard 20 or more 
user evidence forms that indicate 20 or more years continual and 
uninterrupted use, as per section 31(1) of the Highways Act 1980, by 
each individual as a useful benchmark that an application route has 
been used by a sufficient number of the public. Any application made to 
have an alleged footpath added to the definitive map and statement 
must meet the legal tests. 

 
30 The evidence submitted consists of a combination of 16 user evidence 

forms and 10 witness statements. A total of 23 individuals submitted 
user evidence.  There is no evidence that over the relevant period, the 
route has ever been obstructed, that any user has ever been prevented 
from using it or of the landowner doing anything else to legally prevent a 
public footpath coming into being such as the erection of signage.  
Accordingly, on the face of it, the use is as of right. 

 
31 The user evidence that was submitted in support of the application was 

thoroughly investigated. Out of the 23 individuals that submitted user 

Page 12



evidence: 5 have indicated that they used the route to visit friends who 
are residents of West View/immediate vicinity; 4 have indicated that 
they used the route to visit relatives who are residents of West 
View/immediate vicinity; 7 are residents of West View/immediate vicinity 
and have indicated that they use the route for daily/weekly activities 
such as to go shopping, take children to school etc; 2  have indicated 
that they used route to visit both friends and relatives who are residents 
of West View/immediate vicinity; 2 have detailed London addresses and 
indicated that they used the route to collect shopping, assuming for 
relatives of West View/immediate vicinity; 2 haven't indicated that they 
used the route to visit friends or relatives of any of the residents at West 
View/immediate vicinity, and 1 purpose unknown as data provided is 
incomplete (Document G) . The 2 individuals that haven't indicated that 
they used to route to visit friends or relatives of any of the residents at 
West View/immediate vicinity have indicated that they used the route 
specifically for leisure, dog walking and as part of a route that accesses 
Demenses (park, recreational ground).  

 
32 Out of the 23 individuals that submitted user evidence 11 have the 

required 20 or more years of uninterrupted use. Out of those 11: 9 have 
indicated that they used the route to visit friends or relatives who are 
residents of West View/immediate vicinity, and 2 haven't indicated that 
they used the route to visit friends or relatives of any of the residents at 
West View/immediate vicinity. The 2 individuals that haven't indicated 
that they used to route to visit friends or relatives of any of the residents 
at West View/immediate vicinity have indicated that they used the route 
specifically for leisure, dog walking and as part of a route that access 
Demenses (park, recreational ground). 

 
33 It is considered that the 9 users in question are not the public at large 

but a defined class of persons namely residents and lawful visitors of 
residents whose use of the way is private in nature rather than public. 

 
34 Of the remaining Two users, whilst their use would be public in nature, it 

is not considered that two users alone would be sufficient to bring to the 
attention of the landowner that public rights were being asserted. 
Accordingly, the strength of the user evidence that has been submitted 
is not considered to be sufficient to establish that a public footpath is 
reasonably alleged to subsist. 
 

 

Main implications 

Maintenance 

35 If the committee members do not agree the officer’s recommendation 
and this route is added to the Definitive Map as a Public Footpath, the 
County Council as Highway Authority will not become responsible for 
the maintenance of the surface or any furniture associated with the 
route. 

Page 13



Conclusion 

36 It is considered, after examining all of the available evidence, that the 
route under investigation, leading from Gray Lane North, through the 
site of the former National Girls’ School to the boundary wall of St Marys 
Churchyard, does not meet the legal test as per section 31 of the 
Highways Act 1980 and 53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981, and a Definitive Map Modification Order should therefore not be 
made to update the Definitive Map and Statement to record it as a 
public footpath. 

Background papers 

F:\Rights of Way\Modification Orders\A Barnard Castle - West View 

Other useful documents 

 Previous Cabinet reports / None 

 

Author(s) 

 Josephine Upchurch   Tel:  03000 365341 
 Mike Ogden    Tel:  03000 265331 

 Neil Carter     Tel:  03000 269723 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14

file:///F:/Rights%20of%20Way/Modification%20Orders/A%20Barnard%20Castle%20-%20West%20View
file:///F:/Rights%20of%20Way/Modification%20Orders/A%20Barnard%20Castle%20-%20West%20View


 

 

Legal Implications 

See paragraphs 18 to 24 

Finance 

N/A 

Consultation 

See paragraphs 4, 15 and 16 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

N/A 

Climate Change 

N/A 

Human Rights 

See paragraph 22 

Crime and Disorder 

N/A 

Staffing 

N/A 

Accommodation 

N/A 

Risk 

N/A 

Procurement 

N/A 

  

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 15



Appendix 2:  West View Application (as submitted by the 
applicant) 

 

Page 16



 

 

Page 17



 

  

Page 18



 

Page 19



 

Page 20



 

 

 

Document A – Amended Application Route 

P
age 21

Josephine Upchurch
Typewritten text
B

Josephine Upchurch_1
Typewritten text
A



 

P
age 22



 

  

 

Document B – Original Application Route 

P
age 23

Josephine Upchurch_2
Typewritten text
B

Josephine Upchurch_3
Typewritten text
C

Josephine Upchurch_4
Typewritten text
A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

A A.1
 

Document C – Site photographs 

P
age 25



 

  B B.1 P
age 26



 

  

C 

Boundary Wall 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

View.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                      Follow up
Flag Status:                              Completed
 

Dear C l l r Bel l
 
Pleas e f ind attached a  cons ul tation letter for an appl ication made to Durham County Counci l  in 2005 for
a  Defini tive Map Modi f ication Order.
 
 
Kind reg ards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Definitive Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 

From:                                         Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                           03 September 2021 10:16
To:                                               Cllr Richard Bell
Cc:                                               Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                     Consultation Letter - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023)
Attachments:                          2021 09 01 Letter to Cllr Richard Bell - Consultation Letter, West View.docx; Application Route - West

Page 29

http://www.durham.gov.uk/prow
http://www.durham2025.co.uk/
Josephine Upchurch_5
Typewritten text
Document D - Consultation eamils and letters



Neighbourhoods & Climate Change, Access and Rights of Way Team 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham. DH1 5UQ / Main Telephone 03000 260000 / www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

 
          3rd September 2021 
 
 
Mr R Bell 

              

Dear Cllr Bell                                                                                                             

          

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Proposed Amendment to the Definitive 

Map of Public Rights of Way at West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023) 

 
A formal user evidence based Definitive Map Modification Order application was received by us in 
2005 requesting that an unregistered path, that leads from Gray Lane North through two plots of 
land, one being ecclesiastical in nature, to an adopted highway traversing St Marys Church Yard 
(Map 1), be added to the Definitive Map.  
 
Due to the ecclesiastical nature of one of the plots of land, a Public Right of Way cannot arise by 
presumed dedication. Therefore, the application route would lead from Gray Lane North through one 
plot of land and terminate at the boundary wall of St Marys Church Yard (Map 2).    
 
Under provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the Council has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make appropriate modifications by 
order. 
 
A consultation was previously carried out in 2008? and a Highways Committee report drafted, 
however, for reasons unknown the claim did not progress any further. Due to the length of time that 
has elapsed an additional consultation is required. Therefore, I am currently seeking the views of 
the Parish/Town Council, Local Councillors, landowners, and user groups and organisations and will 
be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer regarding the DMMO application to the 
Highways Committee.  A draft report will be composed and will incorporate representations received 
by those in receipt of this consultation.      
 
It is likely that the Highways Committee will not review the application mentioned above until 
November or December of 2021. However, it would be appreciated if you could submit your 
representations within 30 days of receipt of this correspondence or inform me if you would like more 
time to consider this matter.  
 
Please note that any representations made, by virtue of the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the County Council must make them publicly available when a report on 
this application is considered by the Committee. 
 
 
            Cont. 
 
 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/ Dagmar Richardson 

Direct Tel: 03000 265 341 / 265 340 

email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/6/03/023 

Page 30



Page 2 of 2 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Your Sincerely  
Josephine Upchurch 

 
 
 

Definitive Map Officer    
  
 

Page 31



From:                                         Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                           03 September 2021 10:16
To:                                               Cllr Ted Henderson
Cc:                                               Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                     Consultation Letter - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023)
Attachments:                          2021 09 01 Letter to Cllr Ted Henderson - Consultation Letter, West View.docx; Application Route - West

View.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                      Follow up
Flag Status:                              Completed
 

Dear C l l r Henders on
 
Pleas e f ind attached a  cons ul tation letter for an appl ication made to Durham County Counci l  in 2005 for
a  Defini tive Map Modif ication Order.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Definitive Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 

 

Page 32

http://www.durham.gov.uk/prow
http://www.durham2025.co.uk/


Neighbourhoods & Climate Change, Access and Rights of Way Team 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham. DH1 5UQ / Main Telephone 03000 260000 / www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

 
          3rd September 2021 
 
 
Mr T Henderson 

              

Dear Cllr Henderson                                                                                                             

          

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Proposed Amendment to the Definitive 

Map of Public Rights of Way at West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023) 

 
A formal user evidence based Definitive Map Modification Order application was received by us in 
2005 requesting that an unregistered path, that leads from Gray Lane North through two plots of 
land, one being ecclesiastical in nature, to an adopted highway traversing St Marys Church Yard 
(Map 1), be added to the Definitive Map.  
 
Due to the ecclesiastical nature of one of the plots of land, a Public Right of Way cannot arise by 
presumed dedication. Therefore, the application route would lead from Gray Lane North through one 
plot of land and terminate at the boundary wall of St Marys Church Yard (Map 2).    
 
Under provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the Council has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make appropriate modifications by 
order. 
 
A consultation was previously carried out in 2008 and a Highways Committee report drafted, 
however, for reasons unknown the claim did not progress any further. Due to the length of time that 
has elapsed an additional consultation is required. Therefore, I am currently seeking the views of 
the Parish/Town Council, Local Councillors, landowners, and user groups and organisations and will 
be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer regarding the DMMO application to the 
Highways Committee.  A draft report will be composed and will incorporate representations received 
by those in receipt of this consultation.     
 
It is likely that the Highways Committee will not review the application mentioned above until 
November or December of 2021. However, it would be appreciated if you could submit your 
representations within 30 days of receipt of this correspondence or inform me if you would like more 
time to consider this matter.  
 
Please note that any representations made, by virtue of the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the County Council must make them publicly available when a report on 
this application is considered by the Committee. 
 
 
 
 
            Cont. 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/ Dagmar Richardson 

Direct Tel: 03000 265 341 / 265 340 

email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/6/03/023 

Page 33



Page 2 of 2 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Your Sincerely  
Josephine Upchurch 

 
 
 

Definitive Map Officer    
  
 

Page 34



From:                                         Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                           03 September 2021 10:17
To:                                               m clark
Cc:                                               Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                     Consultation Letter - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023)
Attachments:                          2021 09 01 Letter to Barnard Caslte TC - Consultation Letter, West View.docx; Application Route - West

View.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                      Follow up
Flag Status:                              Completed
 

Dear Mr C lark
 
Pleas e f ind attached a  cons ul tation letter for an appl ication made to Durham County Counci l  in 2005 for
a  Defini tive Map Modi f ication Order.
 
 
Kind reg ards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Definitive Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 

 

Page 35

http://www.durham.gov.uk/prow
http://www.durham2025.co.uk/


Neighbourhoods & Climate Change, Access and Rights of Way Team 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham. DH1 5UQ / Main Telephone 03000 260000 / www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

 
          3rd September 2021 
 
 
Mr M Clark 

             
 
Dear Mr Clark                                                                                                             

          

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Proposed Amendment to the Definitive 

Map of Public Rights of Way at West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023) 

 
A formal user evidence based Definitive Map Modification Order application was received by us in 
2005 requesting that an unregistered path, that leads from Gray Lane North through two plots of 
land, one being ecclesiastical in nature, to an adopted highway traversing St Marys Church Yard 
(Map 1), be added to the Definitive Map.  
 
Due to the ecclesiastical nature of one of the plots of land, a Public Right of Way cannot arise by 
presumed dedication. Therefore, the application route would lead from Gray Lane North through one 
plot of land and terminate at the boundary wall of St Marys Church Yard (Map 2).    
 
Under provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the Council has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make appropriate modifications by 
order. 
 
A consultation was previously carried out in 2008 and a Highways Committee report drafted, 
however, for reasons unknown the claim did not progress any further. Due to the length of time that 
has elapsed an additional consultation is required. Therefore, I am currently seeking the views of 
the Parish/Town Council, Local Councillors, landowners, and user groups and organisations and will 
be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer regarding the DMMO application to the 
Highways Committee.  A draft report will be composed and will incorporate representations received 
by those in receipt of this consultation.    
 
It is likely that the Highways Committee will not review the application mentioned above until 
November or December of 2021. However, it would be appreciated if you could submit your 
representations within 30 days of receipt of this correspondence or inform me if you would like more 
time to consider this matter.  
 
Please note that any representations made, by virtue of the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the County Council must make them publicly available when a report on 
this application is considered by the Committee. 
 
 
            Cont. 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/ Dagmar Richardson 

Direct Tel: 03000 265 341 / 265 340 

email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/6/03/023 

Page 36



Page 2 of 2 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Your Sincerely  
Josephine Upchurch 

  
 

Page 37



From:                                         Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                           03 September 2021 10:46
To:                                               'N Mockford'
Cc:                                               Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                     Consultation Letter - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023)
Attachments:                          2021 09 01 Letter to Mr N Mockford - Consultation Letter, West View.docx; Application Route - West

View.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                      Follow up
Flag Status:                              Completed
 

Dear Mr Mockford
 
Pleas e f ind attached a  cons ul tation letter for an appl ication made to Durham County Counci l  in 2005 for
a  Defini tive Map Modi f ication Order.
 
 
Kind reg ards
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Definitive Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 

 

Page 38

http://www.durham.gov.uk/prow
http://www.durham2025.co.uk/


Neighbourhoods & Climate Change, Access and Rights of Way Team 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham. DH1 5UQ / Main Telephone 03000 260000 / www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

 
          3rd September 2021 
                 
 
Mr N Mockford 

                                                                             

Dear Mr Mockford 

         

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Proposed Amendment to the Definitive 

Map of Public Rights of Way at West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023) 

 
A formal user evidence based Definitive Map Modification Order application was received by us in 
2005 requesting that an unregistered path, that leads from Gray Lane North through two plots of 
land, one being ecclesiastical in nature, to an adopted highway traversing St Marys Church Yard 
(Map 1), be added to the Definitive Map.  
 
Due to the ecclesiastical nature of one of the plots of land, a Public Right of Way cannot arise by 
presumed dedication. Therefore, the application route would lead from Gray Lane North through one 
plot of land and terminate at the boundary wall of St Marys Church Yard (Map 2).    
 
Under provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the Council has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make appropriate modifications by 
order. 
 
A consultation was previously carried out in 2008 and a Highways Committee report drafted, 
however, for reasons unknown the claim did not progress any further. Due to the length of time that 
has elapsed an additional consultation is required. Therefore, I am currently seeking the views of 
the Parish/Town Council, Local Councillors, landowners, and user groups and organisations and will 
be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer regarding the DMMO application to the 
Highways Committee.  A draft report will be composed and will incorporate representations received 
by those in receipt of this consultation.      
 
It is likely that the Highways Committee will not review the application mentioned above until 
November or December of 2021. However, it would be appreciated if you could submit your 
representations within 30 days of receipt of this correspondence or inform me if you would like more 
time to consider this matter.  
 
Please note that any representations made, by virtue of the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the County Council must make them publicly available when a report on 
this application is considered by the Committee. 
 
 
 
            Cont. 
 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/ Dagmar Richardson 

Direct Tel: 03000 265 341 / 265 340 

email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/6/03/023 

Page 39



Page 2 of 2 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Your Sincerely  
Josephine Upchurch 

 
 
 

  
 

Page 40



From:                                         Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                           03 September 2021 10:16
To:                                               notices@bywaysandbridlewaystrust.org.uk
Cc:                                               Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                     Consultation Letter - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023)
Attachments:                          2021 09 01 Letter to Byways & Bridleways Trust - Consultation Letter, West View.docx; Application Route -

West View.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                      Follow up
Flag Status:                              Completed
 

To whom i t may concern
 
Pleas e f ind attached a  cons ul tation letter for an appl ication made to Durham County Counci l  in 2005 for
a  Defini tive Map Modif ication Order.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Definitive Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 

 

Page 41

http://www.durham.gov.uk/prow
http://www.durham2025.co.uk/


Neighbourhoods & Climate Change, Access and Rights of Way Team 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham. DH1 5UQ / Main Telephone 03000 260000 / www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

 
          3rd September 2021 
 
 
                 
 
To whom it may concern                                                                                                             

          

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Proposed Amendment to the Definitive 

Map of Public Rights of Way at West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023) 

 
A formal user evidence based Definitive Map Modification Order application was received by us in 
2005 requesting that an unregistered path, that leads from Gray Lane North through two plots of 
land, one being ecclesiastical in nature, to an adopted highway traversing St Marys Church Yard 
(Map 1), be added to the Definitive Map.  
 
Due to the ecclesiastical nature of one of the plots of land, a Public Right of Way cannot arise by 
presumed dedication. Therefore, the application route would lead from Gray Lane North through one 
plot of land and terminate at the boundary wall of St Marys Church Yard (Map 2).    
 
Under provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the Council has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make appropriate modifications by 
order. 
 
A consultation was previously carried out in 2008 and a Highways Committee report drafted, 
however, for reasons unknown the claim did not progress any further. Due to the length of time that 
has elapsed an additional consultation is required. Therefore, I am currently seeking the views of 
the Parish/Town Council, Local Councillors, landowners, and user groups and organisations and will 
be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer regarding the DMMO application to the 
Highways Committee.  A draft report will be composed and will incorporate representations received 
by those in receipt of this consultation.    
 
It is likely that the Highways Committee will not review the application mentioned above until 
November or December of 2021. However, it would be appreciated if you could submit your 
representations within 30 days of receipt of this correspondence or inform me if you would like more 
time to consider this matter.  
 
Please note that any representations made, by virtue of the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the County Council must make them publicly available when a report on 
this application is considered by the Committee. 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Your Sincerely  
Josephine Upchurch 

Definitive Map Officer    
  

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/ Dagmar Richardson 

Direct Tel: 03000 265 341 / 265 340 

email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/6/03/023 

Page 42



From:                                         Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                           03 September 2021 10:16
To:                                               ijmar8@
Cc:                                               hngsbrowser@gmail.com; Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                     Consultation Letter - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023)
Attachments:                          2021 09 01 Letter to Ian Martin (Ramblers Association) - Consultation Letter, West View.docx; Application

Route - West View.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                      Follow up
Flag Status:                              Completed
 

Dear Mr Martin
 
Pleas e f ind attached a  cons ul tation letter for an appl ication made to Durham County Counci l  in 2005 for
a  Defini tive Map Modi f ication Order.
 
 
Kind reg ards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Definitive Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 

 

Page 43

http://www.durham.gov.uk/prow
http://www.durham2025.co.uk/


Neighbourhoods & Climate Change, Access and Rights of Way Team 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham. DH1 5UQ / Main Telephone 03000 260000 / www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

 
          3rd September 2021 
 
 
                 
 
Dear Mr Martin                                                                                                             

          

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Proposed Amendment to the Definitive 

Map of Public Rights of Way at West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023) 

 
A formal user evidence based Definitive Map Modification Order application was received by us in 
2005 requesting that an unregistered path, that leads from Gray Lane North through two plots of 
land, one being ecclesiastical in nature, to an adopted highway traversing St Marys Church Yard 
(Map 1), be added to the Definitive Map.  
 
Due to the ecclesiastical nature of one of the plots of land, a Public Right of Way cannot arise by 
presumed dedication. Therefore, the application route would lead from Gray Lane North through one 
plot of land and terminate at the boundary wall of St Marys Church Yard (Map 2).    
 
Under provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the Council has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make appropriate modifications by 
order. 
 
A consultation was previously carried out in 2008 and a Highways Committee report drafted, 
however, for reasons unknown the claim did not progress any further. Due to the length of time that 
has elapsed an additional consultation is required. Therefore, I am currently seeking the views of 
the Parish/Town Council, Local Councillors, landowners, and user groups and organisations and will 
be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer regarding the DMMO application to the 
Highways Committee.  A draft report will be composed and will incorporate representations received 
by those in receipt of this consultation.     
 
It is likely that the Highways Committee will not review the application mentioned above until 
November or December of 2021. However, it would be appreciated if you could submit your 
representations within 30 days of receipt of this correspondence or inform me if you would like more 
time to consider this matter.  
 
Please note that any representations made, by virtue of the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the County Council must make them publicly available when a report on 
this application is considered by the Committee. 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Your Sincerely  
Josephine Upchurch 

 
 
 

Definitive Map Officer    
  

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/ Dagmar Richardson 

Direct Tel: 03000 265 341 / 265 340 

email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/6/03/023 

Page 44



From:                                         Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                           03 September 2021 10:17
To:                                               jobird9@
Cc:                                               Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                     Consultation Letter - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023)
Attachments:                          2021 09 01 Letter to Ms J Bird (Open Spaces Society) - Consultation Letter, West View.docx; Application

Route - West View.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                      Follow up
Flag Status:                              Completed
 

Dear Ms  B i rd
 
Pleas e f ind attached a  cons ul tation letter for an appl ication made to Durham County Counci l  in 2005 for
a  Defini tive Map Modi f ication Order.
 
 
Kind reg ards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Definitive Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 

 

Page 45

http://www.durham.gov.uk/prow
http://www.durham2025.co.uk/


Neighbourhoods & Climate Change, Access and Rights of Way Team 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham. DH1 5UQ / Main Telephone 03000 260000 / www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

 
          3rd September 2021 
Ms J Bird 

                 
 
Dear Ms Bird                                                                                                            

          

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Proposed Amendment to the Definitive 

Map of Public Rights of Way at West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023) 

 
A formal user evidence based Definitive Map Modification Order application was received by us in 
2005 requesting that an unregistered path, that leads from Gray Lane North through two plots of 
land, one being ecclesiastical in nature, to an adopted highway traversing St Marys Church Yard 
(Map 1), be added to the Definitive Map.  
 
Due to the ecclesiastical nature of one of the plots of land, a Public Right of Way cannot arise by 
presumed dedication. Therefore, the application route would lead from Gray Lane North through one 
plot of land and terminate at the boundary wall of St Marys Church Yard (Map 2).    
 
Under provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the Council has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make appropriate modifications by 
order. 
 
A consultation was previously carried out in 2008 and a Highways Committee report drafted, 
however, for reasons unknown the claim did not progress any further. Due to the length of time that 
has elapsed an additional consultation is required. Therefore, I am currently seeking the views of 
the Parish/Town Council, Local Councillors, landowners, and user groups and organisations and will 
be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer regarding the DMMO application to the 
Highways Committee.  A draft report will be composed and will incorporate representations received 
by those in receipt of this consultation.    
 
It is likely that the Highways Committee will not review the application mentioned above until 
November or December of 2021. However, it would be appreciated if you could submit your 
representations within 30 days of receipt of this correspondence or inform me if you would like more 
time to consider this matter.  
 
Please note that any representations made, by virtue of the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the County Council must make them publicly available when a report on 
this application is considered by the Committee. 
 
 
 
            Cont. 
 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/ Dagmar Richardson 

Direct Tel: 03000 265 341 / 265 340 

email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/6/03/023 

Page 46



Page 2 of 2 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Your Sincerely  
Josephine Upchurch 

 
 
 

  
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 
From: Josephine Upchurch
Sent: Friday, September 3, 2021 10:16 AM
To: jobird
Cc: Dagmar Richardson
Subject: Consultation Letter - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023)

 

 

From:                                         Jo Bird 
Sent:                                           12 September 2021 18:07
To:                                               Josephine Upchurch
Cc:                                               Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                     Re: Consultation Letter - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref:6/03/023)
 
Follow Up Flag:                      Follow up
Flag Status:                              Completed
 

Dear Ms Upchurch
 
Thank you for your consultation.
 
I have now looked at the site and note that there is clear evidence of the path having been used, ie the northern part over
grass shows indication of having been worn by the feet of users.  The Open Spaces Society therefore considers that as the
path is being used it is needed.  The path also fits in with the character of the area with its many footways, many known
locally as yards, some of them named.
 
Yours sincerely
 
Jo Bird
Open Spaces Society
Local Correspondent for Teesdale and Wear Valley Districts of County Durham
 

 
Dear Ms  B i rd
 
Pleas e f ind attached a  cons ul tation letter for an appl ication made to Durham County Counci l  in 2005 for
a  Defini tive Map Modi f ication Order.
 
 
Kind reg ards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Definitive Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 

Page 49

http://www.durham.gov.uk/prow
http://www.durham2025.co.uk/
Josephine Upchurch_6
Typewritten text
Document E - Consultation Responses - Support



Customer Notice

We hav e recently updated our terms and conditions for all our serv ices, including making some important updates to our priv acy notices. To find out more about how
we collect, use, share and retain your personal data, v isit: www.durham.gov .uk/datapriv acy 

Help protect our environment by only printing this email if absolutely necessary. The information it contains and any fi les transmitted with it are confidential and are only

intended for the person or organisation to whom it is addressed. It may be unlawful for you to use, share or copy the information, if you are not authorised to do so. If you

receive this email by mistake, please inform the person who sent it at the above address and then delete the email from your system. Durham County Council takes reasonable

precautions to ensure that its emails are virus free. However, we do not accept responsibil ity for any losses incurred as a result of viruses we might transmit and recommend that

you should use your own virus checking procedures.

Page 50

https://www.durham.gov.uk/dataprivacy


Page 51

Josephine Upchurch_7
Typewritten text
1



P
age 52



PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY EVIDENCE FORM 

Please tick ( .I ) the appropriate boxes. 

Please answer all the questions as fully as possible. 

.; 

§ 
0 

u 

:;' 

§ 
0 

u 

- � 
= = 0 
.. 

;: 

� 
c 

.:; 

g 

"' "' 
"" .; 
e-, 

.. 

c 

" 0 

u 0 

0 

Yes 

/ (i) Footpath? 

(ii) Bridleway? 

(iii) Byway Open to All Traffic? 

The object of this enquiry is simply to reach the truth of the matter, whatever it 

may be. Witnesses are therefore asked to answer the questions as fully as possible 

and not to keep back any information, whether for or against the public claim. 

This is of particular importance if the information is to be of real value in 

establishing the status of the way. 

WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981 - 

SECTION 53 (3) 

DURHAM 
C O U N T Y  
C O U N C I L  

2. Is your claim for: 

Name .............. Occupation . 
Address Day Tel No . 
.......................... .Lc�.P..P..N .. :..... Date of Birth . .. ig __ l, . 
Path runs from �J .. Ct:f YLh,,;................ Grid Ref . 

to S.1.::'. !V.l�':II.. .C;.n;1_g.(��-i..l�........ Grid Ref . 

in the Parish of :l,1.f.'-..d� Ct.Gl . .I.k� . 

and is shown on the map attached to this claim (minimum scale 1: 25000). 

1. Why do you regard this way as public? 

....................... / b.fr:r..<f,, ',1i__iK) __ 1.l·:LJ;.. .J?A:W bl..i.1Y.! .. f'.<-d.T. Q]§-t?.!i.lc!u>,Y h::t::. .. 

................... l.t N.\,i.M!iJ .. €if. cr:f.. .:f.(M i:2N A: t.t"k.\..':l.,fifL.�.1L . 

Page 53

Josephine Upchurch_8
Typewritten text
2



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58

Josephine Upchurch_9
Typewritten text
3



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62

Josephine Upchurch_10
Typewritten text
3



Page 63



Page 64

Josephine Upchurch_11
Typewritten text
4



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68

Josephine Upchurch_12
Typewritten text
5



Page 69



Page 70

Josephine Upchurch_13
Typewritten text
6



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74

Josephine Upchurch_14
Typewritten text
7



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79

Josephine Upchurch_15
Typewritten text
8



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84

Josephine Upchurch_16
Typewritten text
9



P
age 85



Page 86

Josephine Upchurch_17
Typewritten text
10



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90

Josephine Upchurch_18
Typewritten text
11



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95

Josephine Upchurch_19
Typewritten text
11



P
age 96



Page 97

Josephine Upchurch_20
Typewritten text
12



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101

Josephine Upchurch_21
Typewritten text
12



P
age 102



Page 103

Josephine Upchurch_22
Typewritten text
13



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107

Josephine Upchurch_23
Typewritten text
14



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112

Josephine Upchurch_24
Typewritten text
15



P
age 113



Page 114

Josephine Upchurch_25
Typewritten text
16



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119

Josephine Upchurch_26
Typewritten text
17



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123

Josephine Upchurch_27
Typewritten text
18



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128

Josephine Upchurch_28
Typewritten text
18



Page 129



P
age 130



Page 131

Josephine Upchurch_29
Typewritten text
19



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136

Josephine Upchurch_30
Typewritten text
20



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140

Josephine Upchurch_31
Typewritten text
21



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145

Josephine Upchurch_32
Typewritten text
22



Page 146

Josephine Upchurch_33
Typewritten text
23



Page 147

Josephine Upchurch_34
Typewritten text
23



This page is intentionally left blank



Destination Obstructions

Class of Use Start Date End Date To / From
 hedges, fences 

etc

1 FP 1974 2003 29 - - - Y ? N N N N N N

2 FP 1966 1991 2003 12 18

West View 

to Town 

Centre

Shopping Y Y N N N N N N

3 FP 1962 1984 2003 19 24
Home to 

Desmesnes
Visit friends Y Y N N N N N N

4 FP 1965 1978 2003 25 365

Cambridge 

Terrce to 

Desmesnes

Access to 

Desmesnes
Y Y N N N N N N

5 FP - - - - - -

Paper round, 

dog walking, 

visitng friends

_ Y N N N N N N

6 FP 1960 1984 2003 19 152

Town 

Centre to 

West View

Visiting Family 

at West View
Y Y N N N N N N

7 FP 1938 1984 2003 19 60

Town to 

Desmenes 

and family

Dog walking 

and visiting 

family

Y Y N N N N N N

8 FP 1979 - - - 80 - 150

Home to 

town and 

back

- Y Y N N N N N N

9 FP _ 1970 2003 33 24 - 48

Children to 

school, town 

centre

Children to 

school, town 

centre

Y Y N N N N N N

10 FP - 1982 2003 21 52

West View 

to Town 

Centre

Recreation and 

visit friend at 

West View

Y Y N N N N N N

11 FP 1933 1995 2003 8 208

West View 

to Town 

Centre

Shopping Y Y N N N N N N

12 FP 1965 1981 2003 26 104
Home to 

West View
Visit friends Y Y N N N N N N

13 FP 1958 1995 2003 8 200

West View 

to Town 

Centre

Visit family Y Y N N N N N N

14 FP 1958 1984 2003 24 365

Home to 

Work/Town 

Centre

Work and 

Shopping
Y Y N N N N N N

15 FP - - 1990s 17 max.

? to 1983 - 365. 1989 -late 

1990s - less frequent. 1990s 

to 2003 - occational.

-

Delivering 

shopping, 

visiting friends. 

N Y N N N N N N

Name DOB
No. of 

Yrs Use

Gates, 

Stiles 

etc

Notices
Employee or 

Tenant of L.O.
No. of times used per year Purpose

Seen 

others 

using route

Route 

always the 

same

Ever sought 

permission

Ever 

stopped

P
age 149



16 FP 1966 1976 2003 27 15

West View 

to town 

centre

Shopping Y Y N N N N N N

17 FP - 1983 2003 20 730

Prospect 

Place to 

West View

Visit family and 

take kids to 

park

Y Y N N N N N N

18 FP 1961 1984 2003 19 365

Home to 

Work and 

High Street

Work and 

shopping
Y Y N N N N N N

19 FP 1984 1984 2003 19 365

Home to 

School and 

High Street

Education and 

shopping
Y Y N N N N N N

20 FP 1961 1980 2003 23 26

West View 

to Town 

Ctentre

Visit 

friends/family
Y Y N N N N N N

21 FP 1965 - - 16 250 - - Y Y N N N N N N

22 FP - - - 5 365 - - Y Y -
For Sale 

sign
- - - N

23 FP - 1980

2003 - break 

for a couple 

of years up 

to 1983.

21 Regular
Cemetry to 

West View

Dog walking, to 

Desmesnes
Y Y N N N N N N

Date path called into question was 2003 - Those who say they used it after that have had a year deducted from total years use. 

23 individuals submitted evidcne - 5 used route to visit friends who are residents of West View. 4 used route to visit relatives at West View.  7 are residents of West View. 2 used route to visit both friend and relative at West View. 

London addresses, collect shopping (assuming for relative of West View), 2 haven't indicated that they are friends or relatives of any resident at West View.

ts of West view. 

11 users have 20 years or more use (4 used before gap in wall made) = out of the 11, 9  used the route to vist either friends or relatives that are residents of west view/immediate vacinity - Leaving 2  that can be considered as the 'Public at Large' who used the route specifically for 
lesuire purposes. 

P
age 150



N N N Y Y F

Used before there was a hole in 

wall, however still has required 

20 or more years use but also 

used to visit friends at West 

View/immediate vacinity. 

Missing data.

N N N Y N
Address - Ealing , 

London. Rel.

Only 12 years use, lives in 

Ealing, assuming delivered 

shopping to relative/friend at 

West View or immediate 

vaccinity.

N ? N Y Y F Visit Friends

N ? ? Y Y -

Started using before hole in 

wall, however, still has required 

20 of use.

N N N _ Y F Work, friends and missing data

N - - Y N Rel.

Visitng Family at West 

View/immeiate vacinity. 

Middlesex address

? N N Y N Rel.

Visitng Family at West 

View/immediate vacinity. 

missing data.

N N N Y N Res.
Missing data and Resident of 

West View/immediate vacinity.

N N N Y Y Res.

Used before hole in wall, 

however, still has required 20 

years use but also resident of 

West View/immediate vacinity.

N - - Y N F

Has reuqired 20 or more years 

use but used  to visit friend at 

West Vew/immediate vacinity.

N - Y Y Y Res. Only 8 years use.

N - Y Y Y F.

Has reuqired 20 or more years 

use but used  to visit friend at 

West Vew.

N - Y Y Rel.

Only 8 years use and visit 

family at West View/immediate 

vacinity..

N - Y Y Y - unsigned Res.

Has required 20 or more years 

use but is Resident of West 

View.

N N N Y Y F&Rel.

Can only have 17 years use 

max (based on hole in wall 

being created in 1980). Visit 

friends and family at West 

View/immediate vacinity.

NOTESStatement

Visit Friends (F), 

Relatives (Rel.) or 

Resident (Res.)

Route 

enclosed

Will attend 

enquiry

Ever told 

not public

Ever used as 

private right

P
age 151



N N N Y N
Address London. 

Rel.

Used before hole in wall, 

however, still has required 20 or 

more years use but has London 

address and used to do 

shopping for a relative/friend at 

West View/immediate vacinity?.

N Y? Y ? ? Rel.

Has required 20 years of use - 

Split between kids to park and 

visiting relatives at West View..

N Y Y Y Y Res. Resident - West View

N N N Y N Res. Resident - West View

N N Y Y N F & Rel.

has required 20 or more years 

use, however use was to isit 

friends and family at West 

View.

N N N Y N Res. Resident - West View

- - - - Y - unsigned ? Only 5 years use. Missing data

N N N - Y - of sorts N Dog walking

 used route to visit both friend and relative at West View. 1 Purpose unkown as data incomplete. 2 have 

11 users have 20 years or more use (4 used before gap in wall made) = out of the 11, 9  used the route to vist either friends or relatives that are residents of west view. Leaving 2  that can be considered as the 'Public at Large' who used the route specifically for lesuire purposes. 

P
age 152



SPECIFICATION 

TEESDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

RECLAMATION SCHEME FOR 
THE BANK AREA, BARNARD CASTLE, 
CO. DURHAM 

OCTOBER 1980 

· A. R.  GUTIERIDGE 
CHIEF TECHNICAL OFFICER 
TEESDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL, 
43 GALGATE, 
BARNARD CASTLE, 
CO. DURHAM. 

Telephone: BARNARD CASTLE (0833) 38481 

Document  Teesdale District Council Reclamation Plans- West View, Barnard Castle 

Page 153



v 

- 14 - 

TEESDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

RECLAMATION SCHEME FOR THE BANK 
AREA, BARNARD CASTLE, CO. DURHAM. 

SPECIFICATION 

APPENDIX A - DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND 1/0RKS. 

l .  Scope of Works 

The operations to be carried out under this contract are those 
necessary to reclaim 0 .97  hectares (2 . 39  acres) of derelict land to the 
east of The Bank, Barnard Castle, Co. Durham. 

2.  Location of Site 

The site i s  located on the south-eastern side of Barnard Castle, 
immediately to the east of The Bank (A688) and north of an unadopted 
road referred to as Gray Lane. An open area of public open space known 
as The Demesnes i s  located on the eastern boundary of the site. 

3.  Access to the site 

The main access to the site may be gained from Gray Lane, and from 
the access road between the eastern boundary of the site and The Demesnes. 
Internal access into the site may also be gained through a series of 
archways in The Bank frontage which lead to The Demesnes area via enclosed 
vennels and yards. Unrestricted internal vehicular access is available 
from the eastern ends of Wycliffe Chapel and Cleasby's Yards; the 
remaining internal access points are restricted by enclosed archways. 

An add=i-tional access point to the northern boundary of the site may 
be obtained through St. Mary's Churchyard, Newgate. This is subject to 
the Contractor breaking through the existing stone wa l l ,  and reinstating 
the wall and al l  disturbed land on completion of the works. 

4. Description of the site 

The site generally comprises the demolished Wesley School buildings 
and associated playground area, derelict and unused buildings and neglected 
and overgrown garden areas and wasteland. The site is dissected by a 
series of east - west orientated random rubble stone wa lls ,  many of which 
are in a poor state of repair. As the site slopes southwards towards the 
River Tees valley, a large proportion of these walls provide a retaining 
function to take up the changes in level .  

5. Nature of the works 

The work contained in this contract briefly comprises:- 

a )  Demolitions and site clearance: 

Demolition of derelfct or unused stone buildings, demolition of 
stone wal l s , and ripping up of foundations and hard surfaced 
areas. 

Gener.al clearance of rubble, rubbish, subsoil and vegetation 
as required. 

Page 154



• 

"' 

CHURCHYARD 

, 
v 

l 

,..:-.--· c 
, 

,/ 
/ 

s,,,_.o,• • . '' �·20 0 

ST. MARY'S 

' 
' 

--+- 
\ 

'" 

14 16 
24 26 

E 

28 

Page 155



' I 
� 

r . 

I ' J 
J 

J 

' 
J,· 

U�fY � I I 
11'1 .,.� er "' ... ,-,,. 

I �;�/ t· 
I 1.e.� .... Mni:iclh:·:. 

,' t-'.�� 
l '•.!:·..:. 

L r 
J 

----J 

;.' ,, 
" ' ··- 

36, I 33 
t_____,r-LJ___-t-�_j 

- - J 

. ' 
' 

1)€.(\"\0 \; \-tcr,, � 
C\.J� �\�(? 

c1e_c,._, (\."-.C.<2 

(:.,,_co..--Jc,._b.c:nS 

: ' 
'' '. ' ; : 

' . . ' 
' ' 

[] 

JO 
1-J l_ --- ---- - -- -- 

28 

\\ 

- -- 

..,.,,_, 
• 

----------- ------ 

Page 156



36a 

,; 

f 
I 
' j 

, . 

I 
' I ·1 

/ 
- ---- - 

' 1, 
,-f 
I' 

<, 

, 

r- L 

P•cpc-S:d 
\ =r+ 

-- - -- 

TI"\. ']l' Wl)ltl(� w 
CC>ll\hln (f'fl11."''-?i 
OF l·OM ""•• l �" 
"fl.lltt ;t. '!·OM lot.<fi 
(ltJ"lwO.;'t'!:TI�, ,.Ma� 4001" � ,�r A-,CF'll.lli 

'' '' '' .. 
;ij' ' . 

' 
I 

: ;I) : ' '. '' . ' '' . ' 

I ' J H LL ij \ L1 

'l 
' 

--�-- 

' --, " , :'(- . 

,, 
! 

1 
,I 

r· 
51 MARv'S 
CHURCHYARD 

', ', "'1 >OC..M I< .t'jo-,... 
n;,c.o,: • l'l·�I,, .. u,1'1C, 
iu,..,..,ooM n,,S&i HOVl: 
w ....... , . 

w� o.., 111,� "',..,.,.,� n: 
...,J�:.__�;_���TII 

·' ' 

.v!'t ur wor....:� , <tf?,l.>11..i' 1 o..., 
�11'..l , A�p,.* T�o<� �· ""� 

O" ,Z. "1"" l,i<<.M) 4.,o.,..., 
T•1!U:.JI. '%.0"1- lOf\fl, 
� ... OM Q..:,a&U �-,.,...,, 

, ... n u wou:.� T<> 
!ll't'Ol.r,: .... y ,......row�Y DF 

r 
' 

l 
ii ,, 

!I 
ii =:r:· u T ' 

'""" ' ' ' _, ' ' 

Page 157



--, 
j 

--, 
I 
t 

" r : I J i 

I! r· u 
' i 

I 
i 

,. J 

i ; 

/�:: ---''": i 
r 
' 

,.. __ 

r·· 

t 
--.- - -; N"· .t;;.ORBUS AUCU'?AR.,\1 

I '-. 

' - - ' ,. 
i 
' ! 

_:�·-· 
.. ._. 
-:-s::r·. t 

_.(.:::>. 1 I 
.cc. I ··--q:. 

. c, 
Cl:; : . 

... Ct:) 

·., 

�- "-' 
��l. 

S; 

0:;: 
\.t) 

j 

� ,. -�· 
, ' 

.r. 

?/o...nt,� 
f o...;-;ov t. 

1, 

' I ., 
I. -t 

r1fi 
'I'' 

·.fl-·,�··�(·.,._ i� '<;J .. e: ' \,i} . ' ..... 
1. 2::.- .... · 1"'" 1 ', , 

---..,,1;1_:1 { 

.·, 
�1_;-,, 
t�;,\ � 

·' . 

i' 

,,... __ 

ii 
: I 
i ! 

:-�i�:{}:j .� 
�� . ---1.:: 

I ,, 
·i 
' " ---�-Ii \, 

!. 

- -· L. 

22 

,., ' 1 • .. ) '" 
r, "" ,J;i 

Wl-llP / .:;ttR.vB 'PL.a-tvTI 1'x; ·-, I.' 
�6 N" A\.."J\JSC,.LUT!/>JOSA 

'3t N° e,e1u1.-A J>..l,l'>A 
3'2, N" �l.-\X V\MlNA.U'? ( .. -, 
313 ,_,. f,.o,,N"161.lCJJS �J16RA ,, <c.....l '. 

IS> No TVTAl Pl.AN\€"\? ,�}; 
AT \·'2.M c \:'.N"TRE$ �.i� : 

r 

\ 

\ 

Sl MARV's 
CHURCHYARD 

18 t. 
---------ri ' 

' 

- l{f ' ., ____ 1 
' . ---,1 r' , 
\ I ,, 

\ r'. ) 

) \ 
Page 158



Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



 

             

       

 Highways Committee 

10 December 2021 

 Definitive Map Modification Orders 

Statement of Priorities 

 

Report of Alan Patrickson, Corporate Director, Neighbourhoods 

and Climate Change 

 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Countywide 

Purpose of the Report 

1 To agree the Council’s method for determining priorities for Definitive 
Map Modification Order work. 

Executive summary 

2 In the last 2-3 years, the Council has received an unprecedented 
number of Modification Order applications due to the government’s 
proposed 2026 cut off date for certain applications. 

3 Accordingly, there is a significant backlog of applications awaiting 
determination and with limited resources, the Council needs to put in 
place criteria to assist with how determination of these applications are 
to be prioritised. 

Recommendation(s) 

4 That the Committee approve this report as the Authority’s statement of 
priorities for Definitive Map Modification Orders. 

 

  

 

Page 161

Agenda Item 6



Background 

5 The County Council as Surveying Authority has a statutory duty to 
keep the Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way under 
continuous review.  It can make a Modification Order either in 
response to formal applications, or on its own initiative following the 
discovery of new evidence. 

6 It is generally the Highways Committee that determines whether 
evidence based Modification Orders should be made after considering 
all the evidence and the necessary legal criteria.  Modification Orders 
arise both from individual Applications or where evidence is 
‘discovered’ by the Council.  In practice the ‘discovery’ is usually due to 
evidence being submitted by local residents after a path or way which 
is not recorded as a public right of way becomes obstructed or 
disputed by the landowner.  Evidence is generally either in the form of 
use or documentary evidence. 

7 Since 2018 the County Council has received in excess of 260 
applications based on historical documentary evidence, primarily 
submitted by representatives of the British Horse Society seeking to 
record historic bridleways.  These have been prompted by the proposed 
‘cut-off’ date for the receipt of such applications of 1 January 2026.  A 
small number of user evidence applications and claims also continue to 
be made. 

8 There are therefore a substantial number of cases awaiting 
investigation into alleged public rights of way which require detailed 
research of historical documentation and invariably require a legal 
assessment of the evidence in each particular case.  There are also a 
few which require in-depth interviews with selected users. 
Modification Orders once made are usually subject to objections from 
landowners and therefore these Orders are required to be forwarded to 
the Secretary of State for confirmation.  The Secretary of State 
normally determines this by means of a Public Inquiry.  Where the 
Highways Committee declines to make an Order, and a formal 
application has been received, the applicant has a right of appeal to 
the Secretary of State who may then direct the Council to make an 
Order.  Also, where an application has not been determined by the 
Council within 12 months of receipt, the applicant has a right to refer 
the matter to the Secretary of State who may direct the Council to 
determine the application by a specified time.  The SoS will have 
regard to any statement of priorities when deciding what timescale to 
impose. 

9 All outstanding formal applications for Modification Orders are 
contained within the Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) 

Page 162



register which is available for the public to view both on the County 
Council’s website and in hard copy held in the Access and Rights of 
Way Office.  This register is a statutory requirement for all Surveying 
Authorities introduced by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. 

10 It is many years since the Committee last considered the scale of  
applications received by the County Council or agreed a process for 
prioritising those applications. 

Current Position 

11 In response to the increase in applications since 2018, the County 
Council appointed two Definitive Map Officers in July 2019 with the 
specific task of assessing the applications and bringing reports to 
Committee.  The pandemic and the consequent closure of the County 
Record Office and other archives has hindered progress on the 
research and assessment of the evidence for each application.  To date 
four reports have been brought to this Committee since the start of 
2020. 

12 At the present time there are 280 DMMO applications which have yet 
to be considered by the Highways Committee.  In addition there are a 
large number of cases in which some evidence has been discovered or 
submitted claiming the existence of a public right of way, but where no 
formal application has been submitted.  It is envisaged that at least 
one application or claimed path can be presented to each meeting of 
this Committee.  Therefore, it is felt that the Council needs to consider 
a new Statement of Priorities to clarify the reasons for determining 
certain applications in advance of others.   

Proposed criteria for prioritisation 

13 When prioritising the order in which these matters should be 
investigated, it is recommended that priority be given to formal 
applications and that these will normally be dealt with in order of date 
received.  Opportunities will be taken to group applications together 
where they affect the same landowners or rely on the same 
documentary evidence.  

14 There will be occasions where a particular case (whether an application 
is submitted or not) ought to be dealt with at an earlier opportunity 
having regard to one or more of the following factors: 

A)  The degree of public benefit; 

B)       The obstruction, or real threat of obstruction, of the route; 

C) The potential to reduce violence, harassment, hostility or ill 
feeling within a community; 

Page 163



D) The potential to secure the co-operation of landowners and 
users in managing the rights of way network in that locality; 

E) To support enforcement action or to facilitate a planning 
application decision; 

F) The user witnesses are very elderly. 

15 Persons seeking to claim new public rights of way will continue to be 
advised and assisted in the making of formal applications. 

16 An annual report on progress will be made to this Committee each 
December. 

Background papers 

None 

 

Other useful documents 

None 

 

Author(s) 

Mike Ogden   Tel:  03000 265331  

  

Page 164



Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

Legal implications are set out in the body of the report 

Finance 

None 

Consultation 

Priorities will be reported on a regular basis to the Highways 

Committee and can be adapted following representations from 

interested parties. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

All persons seeking to claim new public rights of way will be advised 

and assisted in making formal applications and any decision on the 

application of priority criteria will have due regard to the PSED. 

Climate Change 

The recording of unregistered public rights of way enhances the 

local environment and opportunities for more sustainable forms of 

transport. 

Human Rights 

Any decisions on application of the priority criteria will be made in 

accordance with the ECHR and the Human Rights Act, having due 

regard to any rights which are engaged. 

Crime and Disorder 

Any decision to modify the Definitive Map and Statement will have due 

regard to the Council’s duty to consider crime and disorder implications in 

section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 but must follow the 

statutory framework laid out by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

and the Highways Act 1980. 

Staffing 

None. 

Accommodation 

N/A. 

Page 165



Risk 

Not having prioritisation criteria will expose the Council to a greater degree of 

risk in the event of a Schedule 14 referral to the SoS.  

Procurement 

None. 

 

Page 166


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 8 November 2021
	5 Alleged Public Footpath from West View to St Mary's Church Yard, Barnard Castle (Definitive Map Modification Order Application) - Report of the Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
	Document A - Amended Application Route
	Document B - Original Application Route
	Document C - Site Photographs
	Document D - Consultation emails and letters_redacted
	2021 09 03 CL Email to Cllr R Bell - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref_6_03_023).pdf (p.1)
	2021 09 01 Letter to Cllr Richard Bell - Consultation Letter, West View.pdf (p.2-3)
	2021 09 03 CL Email to Cllr T Henderson - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref_6_03_023).pdf (p.4)
	2021 09 01 Letter to Cllr Ted Henderson - Consultation Letter, West View.pdf (p.5-6)
	2021 09 03 CL Email to Mr M Clark (BCTC) - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref_6_03_023).pdf (p.7)
	2021 09 01 Letter to Barnard Caslte TC - Consultation Letter, West View.pdf (p.8-9)
	2021 09 03 CL Email to Mr N Mockford - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref_6_03_023).pdf (p.10)
	2021 09 01 Letter to Mr N Mockford - Consultation Letter, West View.pdf (p.11-12)
	2021 09 03 CL Email to Byways & Bridleway Trust - West View, Barnard Castle (Ref_6_03_023).pdf.pdf (p.13)
	2021 09 01 Letter to Byways & Bridleways Trust - Consultation Letter, West View.pdf (p.14-15)
	2021 09 03 CL Email to Ian Martin (Ramblers) -  West View, Barnard Castle (Ref_6_03_023).pdf.pdf (p.16)
	2021 09 01 Letter to Ian Martin (Ramblers Association) - Consultation Letter, West View.pdf (p.17-18)
	2021 09 03 CL Email to Ms J Bird (Open Spaces Society) - West View, Barnard Castle (603023).pdf (p.19)
	2021 09 01 Letter to Ms J Bird (Open Spaces Society) - Consultation Letter, West View.pdf (p.20-21)

	Document E - Consultation Responses - Support_redacted
	Document F - User Evidenec Forms & Statements _Redacted
	1 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.1-2)
	Scan0108.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0109.pdf (p.2)

	2 - Application Fom D_redacted.pdf (p.3-7)
	Scan0027.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0028.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0029.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0030.pdf (p.4)
	Scan0031.pdf (p.5)

	3 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.8-11)
	Scan0032.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0033.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0034.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0035.pdf (p.4)

	3 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.12-13)
	Scan0110.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0111.pdf (p.2)

	4 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.14-17)
	Scan0036.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0037.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0038.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0039.pdf (p.4)

	5 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.18-19)
	Scan0112.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0113.pdf (p.2)

	6 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.20-23)
	Scan0040.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0041.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0042.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0043.pdf (p.4)

	7 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.24-28)
	Scan0044.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0045.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0046.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0047.pdf (p.4)
	Scan0048.pdf (p.5)

	8 - Application Form D - Add page 2_redacted.pdf (p.29-33)
	8 Stephen Jones - Application Form D - Add page 2.pdf (p.1-4)
	Scan0049.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0050.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0051.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0052.pdf (p.4)

	Scan0001.pdf (p.5)

	9 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.34-35)
	Scan0114.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0115.pdf (p.2)

	10 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.36-39)
	Scan0053.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0054.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0055.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0056.pdf (p.4)

	11 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.40-44)
	Scan0057.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0058.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0059.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0060.pdf (p.4)
	Scan0061.pdf (p.5)

	11 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.45-46)
	Scan0118.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0119.pdf (p.2)

	12 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.47-50)
	Scan0062.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0063.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0064.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0065.pdf (p.4)

	12 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.51-52)
	Scan0120.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0121.pdf (p.2)

	13 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.53-56)
	Scan0066.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0067.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0068.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0069.pdf (p.4)

	14 - Application From D_redacted.pdf (p.57-61)
	Scan0070.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0071.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0072.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0073.pdf (p.4)
	Scan0074.pdf (p.5)

	15 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.62-63)
	Scan0116.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0117.pdf (p.2)

	16 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.64-68)
	Scan0079.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0080.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0081.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0082.pdf (p.4)
	Scan0083.pdf (p.5)

	17 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.69-72)
	Scan0084.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0085.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0086.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0087.pdf (p.4)

	18 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.73-77)
	Scan0088.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0089.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0090.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0091.pdf (p.4)
	Scan0092.pdf (p.5)

	18 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.78-80)
	Scan0122.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0123.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0124.pdf (p.3)

	19 - Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.81-85)
	Scan0094.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0095.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0096.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0097.pdf (p.4)
	Scan0098.pdf (p.5)

	20- Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.86-89)
	Scan0099.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0100.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0101.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0102.pdf (p.4)

	21- Application Form D_redacted.pdf (p.90-94)
	Scan0103.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0104.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0105.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0106.pdf (p.4)
	Scan0107.pdf (p.5)

	22 - User Evidence Statement by Phone_redacted.pdf (p.95)
	23 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.96-97)
	23b - User Evidence Statement by Phone_redacted.pdf (p.1)
	23 - User Evidence Statement_redacted.pdf (p.2)


	Document G - West View - User Summary Chart_redacted
	Document H  - TDC Reclamation Scheme - West View, BC
	Scan0029.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0030.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0025.pdf (p.1)
	Scan0026.pdf (p.2)
	Scan0027.pdf (p.3)
	Scan0028.pdf (p.4)

	Document I - Diocesan Board of Finance (Smith Roddam Solicitors)

	6 Definitive Map Modification Orders Statement of Priorities - Report of the Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods and Climate Change

